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About the Company 

IE Industries was formed in July 1986 to accelerate diversification 
outside the utility business. Its principal subsidiary, Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company, provides electric, natural gas and steam 
energy to residential, commercial and industrial customers, in Iowa.  
Iowa Electric is in its 107th year of operation.  

IE Industries' diversification efforts have resulted in development 
of subsidiaries in telecommunications, transportation and utility
related businesses. IE Industries also has a 9-percent equity interest 
in Telecom*USA, the fourth-largest telecommunications company 
in the United States.*
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Financial Highlights

Operating revenues (000's) ....................................  
N et incom e (000's) .................................................  
Earnings per average common share ....................  
Dividends declared per common share ................  
Construction expenditures (000's) ........................  
Cash flows from operating activities (000's).........  
Sales of electricity to customers (Kwh) (000's) ....  
Total gas sales, including transported volumes 
(dekatherm s) (000's).............................................  

Number of common shareholders.........................  
Number of full-time employees ............................
* Before cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles.

Quarterly High, Low, and Closing Prices of 
Common Stock (Dollars) 

28 High U Low * Closing 28 
27 m 27

26 

25 

24 

23 

22 

21 

20

1985 1986 1987* 1988 
*Before cumat ive effects of changes in accounting principles 

The Company's return on average com
mon equity has continued to improve 
since 1985.

26 

25 

24 

23 

21

1987 1988 

Quarterly common stock dividends of $.505 and $.495 were paid by the Company 
during 1988 and 1987, respectively. The Company's common stock is traded on the 
New York Stock Exchange. The accompanying chart shows the range of trading 
prices for the last two years.

1988 

$ 438,252 
$ 34,154 
$ 2.43 
$ 2.025 
$ 65,271 
$ 34,644 

4,704,329

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$

1987 

412,778 
29,529* 

2.14* 
1.99 

52,887 
34,042 

4,418,005

Increase 
(Decrease) 

$ 25,474 
$ 4,625 
$ .29 
$ .035 
$ 12,384 
$ 602 
286,324 

3,471 
(1,061) 

128

Percent 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

6 
16 
14 
2 

23 
2 

6.5 

13 
(4) 
8

30,762 
26,353 
1,719

27,291 
27,414 

1,591

Return on Average 
Common Equity 
14%

13



4

IE Industries at a Glance

Ho System Map

Y C O V 

Electric Gas Gas and Electric Electric 
Commercial Commercial Commercial Generating 

Offices . Offices Offices Plants



5

IE Industries Description 
IE Industries Inc., is a 

diversified holding company 
with a broad range of busi
nesses in telecommunications, 
transportation and utility
related areas. The principal 
subsidiary, Iowa Electric Light 
and Power Company, provides 
electric, natural gas and steam 
energy to about 275,000 resi
dential, commercial and indus
trial customers in more than 
400 communities in Iowa.  
Fossil fuel units provide 70 
percent of Iowa Electric's 1,143 
megawatts of generating and 
purchased power capacity with 
nuclear providing the remain
ing 30 percent.

Vision Statement 
Our vision is to become a 

profitable, diversified, growing, 
vibrant business which is recog
nized for its sensitivity to 
customer, employee and 
shareholder needs. This busi
ness would: 
" Retain and expand the core 

electric and gas utilities; 
" Selectively invest in other 

businesses; 
" Maintain a strong customer 

service orientation; 
* Provide significant oppor

tunity for employee growth in 
an environment that pro
motes their ideas, self-esteem 
and financial well-being and 

" Provide continuing increases 
in shareholder value.

Strategy 
Having considered the corpo

rate vision, IE Industries devel
oped its "New Directions" strat
egy that is customer, employee 
and shareholder oriented. Key 
ingredients are: 
" Customer-oriented electric 

and gas utility businesses, 
with expansion to other 
opportunities as they arise; 

" Intensified efforts to control 
costs in the utility business; 

" Profitable growth of IE 
Industries' non-regulated 
businesses and 

" Selective diversification 
into investments consistent 
with business capabilities, 
where profit potential exists 
at acceptable risks.

Diversified Businesses 
Telecom*USA: As a result of the merger between the Teleconnect 
Company and SouthernNet, Inc., IE Industries holds a 9-percent 
equity interest in the new entity, Telecom*USA. The new company 
is the fourth largest long-distance carrier in the United States.  

Long Lines, Ltd.: IE Industries has a 23.5-percent equity interest in 
this telemarketing, telephone switching and resort business. The 
company has demonstrated dramatic growth and has excellent future 
potential.  
Cedar Rapids and Iowa City Railway (CRANDIC): This wholly 
owned short-line railroad subsidiary moves and switches more than 
34,000 carloads of freight per year, benefiting from the growth of 
major grain processors.  
IEI Container Services Corp.: This subsidiary opened in 1988 to 
wash and repair railroad cars. Specializing in sanitizing the insides 
of rail cars used to haul food and food products, the company has ex
perienced rapid growth.  
Industrial Energy Applications, Inc.: IEA owns and operates 
standby generating units. Its joint venture subsidiary, EnDYNA 
Power Corp., is penetrating the national co-generation market.  

MicroFuel Corporation: A joint venture subsidiary, this company 
developed the technology to micronize coal for burning in coal-fired 
generating facilities. The process is currently undergoing full-scale 
testing.
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Chairman's Message 

Dear Shareholder: 
For IE Industries, 1988 was a year 

of progress.  
* Utility business experienced 

significant increase in 
energy sales.  

* Diversified investments showed 
marked progress in expansion 
and growth.  

* Earnings per share posted gain 
from the previous year.  

* Iowa's economy continued its 
accelerated growth, with manu
facturing and food processing 
leading the way.  

Financial Performance 
From a financial viewpoint, 1988 

was a good year. Earnings per share 
rose from $2.14 (prior to the cumula
tive effects of changes in accounting 
principles) in 1987 to $2.43. Sales 
growth was strong, aided by the 
strengthening of the economy and 
benefits received from economic 
development efforts. Electric sales 
increased almost 7% and gas sales 
improved 13%. Earnings for 1988 
were assisted by a significant contri
bution from our diversified invest
ments, which provided 16% of 
consolidated earnings.  

Utility Business 
Utility business is our core busi

ness and it will continue to be the 
flagship of our company for some 
time to come. We must maintain its 
strength and viability in an increas
ingly competitive environment.  

The aggressive program in busi
ness development launched in 1985 
has reaped significant benefits, not 
only for our company, but also for 
the communities we serve and the 
state at large. In 1988 several of our 
large industrial customers an
nounced major expansion plans. In
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addition, the decisions by Eastman 
Kodak to locate a $50 million bio
technology facility in Cedar 
Rapids, and NSK Corporation to 
build the largest ball -bearing 
manufacturing facility in North 
America at Clarinda, are clear indi
cations that Iowa's economy is 
indeed on the move.  

The sales of electric energy and 
natural gas exceeded our fore
casted goals. However,the record 
jump in energy consumption 
during the summer months 
signaled the need for us to review 
our production capacity to meet 
future demand. One of our major 
challenges in 1989 will be the in
creased effort in demand-side load 
management, and the promotion 
of innovative programs in the 
efficient use of energy. It is our 
goal to further delay major capital 
investment in new power plants.  

Environmental issues such as 
acid rain and the greenhouse effect 
will merit our close attention in 
1989. Federal legislation on acid 
rain is imminent, and it will 
almost certainly impact on our 
generation utilization and future 
planning.  

The need to have stabilized 
energy prices to protect our 
market position cannot be 
achieved without a sustained 
effort in cost containment and 
cost reduction. Therefore, this 
strategy, initiated in 1984, will be 
refocused in 1989, and new pro
grams will be pursued to optimize 
operational efficiency.  

Diversified Activities 
The goal of our diversification 

effort is to complement our utility 
operation and to enhance our 
shareholder values over the long 
term. The year of 1988 marked 
substantial progress in the targeted 
areas of telecommunications, 
transportation, and energy-related 
businesses.  

Our investment in Teleconnect, 
the fast growing, Iowa-based 
telecommunications company, 
continues to increase in value.  

In 1988 Teleconnect became a 
publicly traded company, and 
later merged with the Atlanta
based SouthernNet, Inc.. The 
resulting holding company,

Telecom*USA, is now the 
fourth-largest long distance 
service company in the United 
States, with a customer base of 
400,000 and revenue over $523 
million.  

In 1988 we also made a signifi
cant investment in Long Lines, 
Ltd., another telecommunications 
company with dramatic growth 
in its six years of operation. Cur
rently, Long Lines employs more 
than 2,000 people. Its diversified 
resort business in the Iowa Lakes 
region has had a significant 
impact on our utility business 
and also on the economic growth 
of the area.  

In the transportation sector, 
the Cedar Rapids and Iowa City 
Railway Company (CRANDIC) 
had another successful year. In a 
strategic move to expand its com
petitive position, the CRANDIC 
successfully acquired a control
ling interest in the largest barge 
terminal north of St. Louis on the 
Mississippi River.  

The development of IEI 
Container Services Corporation, 
a wholly-owned subsidiary in rail 
car repair and washing, is also on 
target. We are satisfied with its 
progress and expect continuing 
growth in 1989.  

In the non-regulated energy 
business, we are active in two 
projects. One joint venture, 
MicroFuel Corporation, specializ
ing in micronization of coal, 
continues to make good progress.  
EnDYNA Power Corporation, 
another joint venture subsidiary, 
is making inroads in the national 
cogeneration business.  

Economic Resurgence 
The economic recovery in 

Iowa, which began in 1987, 
gained additional strength last 
year. The unemployment rate is 
now at four percent. Farm and 
land values rose twenty percent, 
and manufacturing employment 
increased substantially for the 
first time in almost fifteen years.  

This economic resurgence is 
even more evident in the service

territory of our utility business.  
In eastern Iowa housing starts 
doubled from 1985 to 1988, and 
service industries such as data 
processing and telemarketing, 
almost non-existent a decade ago, 
now employ thousands of workers.  

Indeed we are encouraged by the 
progress made thus far and 
enthusiastic about the future. In 
the environment of economic 
resurgence, we expect to find new 
markets for our products and 
services, and added opportunities 
for expansion. The past year's de
velopments reaffirmed our belief 
in our vision and strategy. We look 
upon the year of 1989 with opti
mism, and we realize that our 
success will depend on meeting 
new challenges and capitalizing on 
new opportunities.  

The progress made in 1988 
could not have been achieved 
without the commitment and dedi
cation of our employees, and the 
continuing encouragement and 
support of the shareholders. To all 
of you, our deepest appreciation 
and gratitude. * 

Sincerely, 

Lee Liu
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Corporate Commitment
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Year in Review
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W hen IE Industries 
1986, the "new 
directions" corpo

rate strategy was adopted. That 
strategy built upon a core utility 
base to diversify into other busi
nesses which are directly 
related to existing business and 
expertise. As a result, the diver
sification effort at IE Industries 
has been focused in the areas of 
energy, transportation and tele
communications.  

* Energy 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company 

The overall corporate strategy 
of IE Industries has, from the 
beginning, been anchored on a 
strong commitment to manag
ing, strengthening and position
ing the principal subsidiary, 
Iowa Electric Light and Power 
Company, to take advantage of 
emerging opportunities while 
controlling costs and offering 
customers superior service.  

Electric Operations 
1988 was a record-breaking 

year for the utility business. In 
August, the company hit a new 
record for electric demand. For 
the year, electric sales grew by 
6.5 percent over 1987, with 
actual sales of 4.7 billion 
kilowatt hours. Although the 
hot summer weather was re
sponsible for about half of this 
load growth, the continued 
growth of the economy in Iowa 
has created real sales increases 
among all major classes, par
ticularly with industrial and

commercial customers. After 
normalizing for weather, that's a 
3.9 percent increase from 1987, 
and 3.5 percent above forecast.  

The challenge associated with 
the increased load demand is 
the apparent need for additional 
generation capacity in the 
future. Iowa Electric has an 
aggressive demand-side load 
management program which 
emphasizes time-of-day and 
interruptible service pricing, as 
well as a seasonal pricing 
structure. These programs 
produce total load savings in the 
150 to 200 megawatt range, 
which would be equivalent to 
plant expansion costing in 
excess of $200 million. To meet 
the increasing energy demand, 
our least-cost planning strategy 
calls for an acceleration of this 
demand-side program and new 
energy efficiency programs 
while new plant construction 
is delayed.  

Gas Operations 
The natural gas business con

tinues to experience healthy 
volume growth. Iowa Electric's 
aggressive and innovative 
strategy on the gas spot market 
and in the contract carriage 
business has placed us in a 
position to look for opportu
nities to expand our gas opera
tions.  

In December, in an effort to 
consolidate the gas business, 
Iowa Electric sold its Nebraska 
gas operations, which included 
service to five small eastern 
Nebraska communities.  

Challenges 
The utility business will face 

a number of challenges in the 
near future with generation

Year-End Investment in 
Diversified Companies 
In millions of dollars 

90 

80 

70 

60 

554, 0 ; 
50 

30 

11.  

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 

The increase in the investment in di
versified companies in 1988 is related 
to the Telecom*USA and Long Lines, 
Ltd. investments.  

planning, environmental issues, 
cost containment and an in
creasingly competitive market
place. These areas will be the 
focus of our planning for 1989 
and beyond.  

Industrial Energy 
Applications, Inc.  

In 1988, Industrial Energy 
Applications, Inc. (IEA) and its 
joint venture subsidiary, 
EnDYNA Power Corporation, 
moved to capture a share of the 
nationwide cogeneration busi
ness. An East Coast office was 
established to move into the 
burgeoning independent power 
market in the East.  

MicroFuel Corporation 
A new concept on the cutting 

edge of technology in the coal
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business is the focus of the 
MicroFuel Corporation, based 
in Ely, Iowa. MicroFuel has-de

iveloped the technology and 
equipment to efficiently 
micronize-coal ifor burning in 
electric utility coal-fired gener
ating-facilities..  

The milling processhasswide 
potential application in the' 
electric utility business. For 
fossil fuel generatingfacilities, 
it holds promise for both 
limiting.environmental emis
sions and for providing greater' 
fl-exibility using.coall.  

Tests are underway atiDuke 
PowerCompanyt in North 
Carolina. A newly-constructed' 
test facility in Ely is in opera
tion-to simulate varying coal.  
qualityand operating condi
tionsl IE Industrieslhas made a' 
venture capital investmentiin.  
MicroEuel, and holds a major
ity% interest..  

* Transportation 
Cedar Rapids and 'Ibwa City 
Railway Company' 

The Cedar Rapids and Iowa 
City RailwayCompany 
(CRANDIC) continued its track 
record as a- profitable short-line' 
freight carrier. Overthe last six, 
years, revenuesgrew from $7.6 
millionto $10..7 million in 
1988, while earnings increased 
from $2 million to $3 milli6n.  

CRANDIC expanded its busi
ness in 1988 to include a barge 
terminal on the Mississippi 
River. in East -Dubuque, Illinois.  
The purchase of the Dubuque 
barge terminal 'provides

CRANDIC customers access to 
the Mississippi River for trans
porting coal and grain.  

IEIlContainer, 
Services Corp.  

The first:rail cars'rolled into 
this: new state-of-the-art rail car 
washing and repairfacility, in 
1988. This'wholly-owned 
subsidiary is a natural exten
sion of our transportation: 
business. Its specialty is sani
tizing the insides of railcars 
used to haul foodor'food 
products: Irraddition,. .  
Container:Services is develop
ing a car repaii business sub
,stantially exceeding expecta
tions.  

4 Telecommuncations 
Teleconnecti 

The shining star of our diver
sification program continues to 
be ouninvestment'ii the 
Teleconnect Company, now 
Telecom*USA. 1988 was a' 
very'big year'for this'rapidly 
expanding -telecommunications 
company. Teleconnect went 
public in the spring'and isoon 
after-that, announced plans to 
merge .withathe Atlanta-based 
SouthernNet, Inc. The 'resulting 
holding company, Tele
com*USA; is the fourth-largest 
long distance carrier in the 
Unite&States with combined 
revenues in excess of $523 
million.  

The merger was completed 
on a share for share basis. Both 
companies'had essentially the 
same numberrof-shares out
standing, so IE Industries 
retains a 9 percent 'interest in 
Telecom*USA'and holds a 
seat on the board of directors.

Because of accounting rules 
concerning the extent of owner
ship interest, IE Industries will 
no longer be.able to record' 
Telecom*USA's income,- asswas 
done with Teleconnect. Cure
rently, the marketivalue of
TIlecom*USA's stock is sub
stantially. inexcess of4our $32
million carrying value.  

LongLines, Ltd..  
Another rapidly growiig tele'

communications companybased 
inSergeant.Bluff, Ibwa caught: 
our-attentiomin.1988. Long 

.Lines .Ltd. operates inthe tele
phone switching;.telemarketing 
and-resort businesses. It hash 
grown from 22 employees in 
1983,to more than .2,000 today.  
Mostrof this'growth hasbeen in
the telemarketing company,, 
Pioneer"Teleteclin6logies.  

Long Lines attracted our
interest because its management 
team has demonstrated a real 
ability.to identify and seize 
opportunitiesin rapidly chang-,
ing markets.  

,The resorttbusiiess of Long 
'ines-has been focused in the" 
Lakessregionrof northwest lowa,.  
The area has become the premier 
tourist'and 'convention'centerlin
Iowa. The resorts, Village-East, 
Village:West.and Manhattan, 
Beach have developed into one 
of Iowa Electric's largest north
west-Iowa customers.*
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Diversification Timeline

IOWA ELECTRIC LIGHT 
DI 0 AND POWER COMPANY

_2 A, J II Ii I'
n July 1, 1986, IE Industries 

became the parent company 
of Iowa Electric Light and 
Power Company. IE Indus

tries later acquired Iowa Electric's 
subsidiaries. Those included the Cedar 
Rapids and Iowa City Railway Com
pany, Industrial Energy Applications, 
Inc. and Iowa Land and Building 
Company. IE Industries also held a 30 
percent equity interest in Teleconnect 
Company of Cedar Rapids.  

Since its inception, IE Industries has 
moved forward with an aggressive, yet 
focused diversification program. That 
focus is in businesses where IE Indus
tries has a developed expertise, like 

energy, transportation and telecommu- i 
nications. Since 1986, IE Industries 
has added several companies to its list 
of investments and subsidiaries. This 
timeline provides information on what 
investments and acquisitions have 
been made in the short history of IE 
Industries' diversification effort.

Container 
LL L; 1 Services Corp

TE held a 30 percent equity 
interest in this fast-growing tele
communications company w 

UL51L5\yX~~\~VXVL5~?U based in Cedar Rapids, Iowa.

Iowa Electric Light and Power 
Company provides electric, gas [8/87) 24-hour centralized 
and steam service to 275,000 IE Customer Service Center 
customers in 55 Iowa counties. fully operational.

Cedar Rapids and Iowa City 
Railway Company (CRANDIC) 
provides freight services in 
the Midwest.

iiA
Industrial Energ Applications (1/88) lEA ond the Des Moines, 
Inc., sells, installs an operates lowo-based Brown Engineering Co.  
standby generating units for announce theformation ofu joint stanby eneatig uitsfor venture subsidiory, EnD YNA 
large industrial and commercial Power Corp. to develop cogenera
energy customers. tion systems nationwide.  

L O

Iowa Land and Building 
Company acquires and sells real 
estate for the utility company.

July February 

1986 1988

IE 
INDUSTRIES
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(5/88) IE Industries acquires an developing the technology and 

I equ interest in this Ely, Iowa- equipment to micronize coal for 
based research and devel- burning in electric utility coal
opment company focused on fired generating facilities.

(4/88) IE Industries acquires an 
equity interest in Long Lines r I Ltd., atelephone switching, 
telemarketing and real estate (5/88) Long Lines announces 
holding company based in the purchase of Village East, 
Sergeant Bluff, Iowa. located in Okoboji, Iowa.

(9/88) Pioneer Teletechnologies, 
Long Lines' telemarketing and 
telcommunications business 

expands to eastern lowa with a 
facility in Iowa City.

(2/88) IEI Container Services and repair facility. The new 
Corp., a wholly-owned subsidi plant, located in Cedar Rapids, 
ary of IE Industries begins op Iowa, employs state-of-the-art 
erations as a rail car washing technology in its operation.  

(12/88) Teleconnect shareholders 
(5/88) Teleconnect offers 2.2 million approve a merger with the Atlanta, 

shares of common stock on the Georgia-based SouthernNet,Inc., under 
New York Stbck Exchange. the holding company, Telecom *USA.  

(8/88) IE recognized by lowa 
Community Action Association for 

development of Project Share, 
IE's energy assistance program.  

(6/88) CRANDIC purchases a 
controllihg interest in Dubuque 
barge terminal to provide rail 
customers with access to the 

Mississippi River.  

(12/88) EnDYNA Power Corp. opens 
an East Coast office to develop 

cogeneration systems.

May 
1988

I Ii

_I-i

April 
1988

January 
1989

,H

i
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of the 
Results of Operations and 
Financial Condition 

The following discussion analyzes changes in the 
components of net income during the calendar years 
1988 and 1987 for IE Industries Inc. (Industries) and 
its wholly-owned subsidiaries (the Company).  

Results of Operations 
Income before cumulative effects of changes in 

accounting principles increased in both 1988 and 
1987 compared to prior years. The reasons for the 
increases are explained in the following discussion.  

Electric revenues changed because of the following 
factors: 

Electric Revenues 
Increase (Decrease) 

from Prior Year 
1988 1987 

(in millions)

Rate changes ...............................  
Recovery of fuel costs .................  
Kwh sales and other ...................  

Increase in sales (in Kwh) ..........

$(2.6) 
1.0 

12.9 
$11.3 

6.5%

$11.3 
3.4 
3.3 

$18.0 

1.7%

In 1988, approximately one-half of the increased 
Kwh sales resulted from unseasonably warm summer 
weather and the remaining one-half from the 
strengthening of the Iowa economy. Iowa Electric's 
largest electric customer is constructing a co-genera
tion plant, a portion of which is now in service. An 
agreement has been signed with that customer 
through June 1, 1990 which provides for a minimum 
billing demand of approximately 50% of its histori
cal monthly usage. While the ultimate impact of 
losing the customer is uncertain, it is not expected to 
have a significant impact on earnings.  

The increase in 1987 revenue was primarily the 
result of increases in electric rates which were placed 
into effect in July, 1986 on an interim basis and May, 
1987 on a final basis.  

Offsetting the revenue increases during both years 
was an electric tariff decrease, effective July 1, 1987, 
filed with the Iowa Utilities Board (IUB) in order to 
reflect the effects of the Tax Reform Act of 1986.  
(See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further discussion of these rate 
matters.) 

Iowa Electric's tariffs include an energy adjustment 
clause which is designed to currently recover the 
costs of fuel and the energy portion of purchased 
power in billings to customers.

Gas revenues changed because of the following 
factors: 

Gas Revenues 
Increase (Decrease) 

from Prior Year 
1988 1987 

(in millions) 

Rate changes ............................... $ - $0.5 
Recovery of gas costs .................. 11.5 (29.6) 
Sales and other ........................... 1.5 _ 5.9) 

$13.0 $(35.0)
Increase (decrease) in sales, 
including transported volumes 
(in therms) .. ................ 12.7% (10.6)%

As reflected above, Iowa Electric's gas tariffs 
include purchased gas adjustment clauses designed 
to recover the cost of gas purchased for resale on a 
current basis. Gas revenues increased during 1988 
primarily due to increased sales volumes and the 
recovery of increased gas purchases. The decrease 
during 1987 resulted primarily from reductions in 
the cost of gas purchased and decreases in gas sales.  

Gas margins were $15.7 million and $20.2 million 
for the years 1988 and 1987, respectively. The 1988 
margin was adversely effected by the recording of a 
$5.0 million estimated liability to pipeline suppliers, 
included in gas purchased for resale. The 1987 gas 
margin decreased from 1986 by $5.7 million, primar
ily due to mild weather.  

Fuel for production increased during 1988 and 
decreased during 1987. The 1988 increase was pri
marily due to increased electric generation and a full 
year's amortization of coal contract termination 
costs, which are being recovered through rates. (See 
Note 11 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements.) The decrease during 1987 is primarily 
due to decreases in the cost of coal, partially offset by 
increases in fossil-fueled generation and a partial 
year's amortization of coal contract termination 
costs. The primary factor causing the increase in 
fossil-fueled generation was the nuclear refueling 
outage at the Duane Arnold Energy Center (DAEC); 
there was no refueling outage during 1986.  

Purchased power decreased during 1988 as a result 
of increased electric generation as discussed above, 
as well as reduced capacity purchase charges under a 
long-term power purchase contract. Purchased 
power costs increased during 1987 primarily because 
of energy purchases made during the refueling 
outage at the DAEC and decreased sales to other utili
ties. A reduction in the cost of capacity purchases 
under the long-term power purchase contract par
tially offset the increases.  

Combined other operation and maintenance ex
penses increased during 1988 and 1987. Such 
increases resulted primarily from increased costs 
incurred at the DAEC during the refueling in both
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Electric Sales 
In billions of kilowatt-hours 

5,000 

4,500 

4,000 

3,500 

3,000 

2,500 

2,000 

1,500 

1,000 

500 

1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 

Sales for resale & other Commercial 

Industrial Residential & rural

Electric sales increased 6.5% from 1987 to 4,704,329,000 kilo
watt-hours. Residential sales increased 7% and rural sales in
creased 4%. Commercial sales increased 7% while industrial 
sales increased 6%. Sales for resale and other increased 6%.  
The 5-year compound rate of growth is 2%.

Fuel Cost 
Per million Btu's burned
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3,000 
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1,500 
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1.00 

.50

Coal

$3.00

2.50

2.00

- 1.50

1.00 

.50

3 Average 3 Nuclear

Coal prices have decreased 47% since 1984, primarily as a result 
of the termination of two long-term coal contracts. In 1988, aver
age fuel costs decreased 6% because of greater nuclear-fueled 
generation.

Gas Volumes Delivered 
In millions of dekatherms 
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Transported volume Commercial 

3 Industrial Residential

Total volumes delivered, including transported volumes, were 
30,762,000 dekatherms, a 13% increase from 1987. Residential 
and commercial sales both increased 15%. Industrial sales de
creased 4% but industrial volumes delivered, including trans
ported volumes, increased 10%.

Year-End Capitalization 
In millions of dollars
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Preferred & MLong-term debt 
preference stock

The Company's capitalization ratios for the last five years are 
presented above. These ratios are consistent with the Company's 
long-term capital structure objectives.

ME, - Mmff-'W
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years. Also contributing to the increase in 1988 were 
increased costs associated with maintenance on 
distribution lines, as well as increased operating 
costs of a diversified subsidiary which began opera
tions in December, 1987.  

Depreciation and amortization expense increased 
during 1988 and decreased during 1987. The 1988 
increase is primarily attributable to increased utility 
plant in service and a higher provision for decom
missioning. The 1987 decrease resulted from the 
effect of an adjustment to reflect the change in 
the useful life of the DAEC from 28 to 36 years, 
partially offset by the provision for decommission
ing.  

Taxes other than income taxes increased in 1988 
because of increased property taxes, resulting from 
higher assessed values.  

Interest expense increased during both 1988 and 
1987 primarily due to increases in the average 
amount of debt outstanding during the year partially 
offset by decreased average interest rates.  

Income from stock transactions of affiliate of $5.8 
million and $2.3 million for 1988 and 1987, respec
tively, is explained in Note 1(c) of the Notes to Con
solidated Financial Statements.  

Miscellaneous, net for 1987 reflects the write-off of 
disallowed allowance for funds used during con
struction (AFC) recorded for the Guthrie County 
generating station. (See Note 2 of the Notes to Con
solidated Financial Statements.) 

Changes in income taxes for 1988 and 1987 are 
primarily related to reductions in the Federal statu
tory income tax rates from 46% in 1986 to 40% in 
1987 and 34% in 1988 and reductions in taxable 
income. See Notes 1(i) and 4 of the Notes to Consoli
dated Financial Statements for detailed discussions 
of income tax matters, including a discussion of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96 
(SFAS 96) which establishes accounting and report
ing standards for the effects of income taxes.  

Net income for 1987 was affected by two changes 
in accounting principles. Iowa Electric began record
ing revenue for service rendered but unbilled at 
month-end. The cumulative effect as of January 1, 
1987 of recording such unbilled revenues increased 
net income by $6,894,000. In addition, pursuant to a 
rate order of the IUB, Iowa Electric was allowed to 
recover the cost (after the AFC write-off referred to 
above) associated with cancelled projects, but with
out rate base treatment. In accordance with SFAS 
90, an adjustment of $2,347,000, net of income taxes, 
was recorded to discount the future revenues associ
ated with such recoverable costs. Both adjustments 
were presented as changes in accounting principles 
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. (See 
Notes 1(e) and 2, respectively, of the Notes to Con
solidated Financial Statements.) 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 
The Company's capital requirements are primarily 

attributable to Iowa Electric's construction program,

Industries' diversification activities and maturing 
debt and sinking fund requirements. It is anticipated 
that future capital requirements will be met by both 
cash flows from operating activities and external 
financing. Cash flows from operating activities is 
dependent on economic conditions as well as timely 
rate relief for Iowa Electric. Access to the long-term 
and short-term capital and credit markets is neces
sary for obtaining funds externally.  

Construction Program 
The Company's construction program consists 

principally of improvements to Iowa Electric's exist
ing electric production, transmission and 
distribution facilities in service. Construction expen
ditures during 1989 are expected to approximate $60 
million. The levels of construction are projected to 
decrease 20% in 1990 and remain relatively stable 
through the early 1990's. It is estimated that ap
proximately 85% of construction expenditures will 
be provided by cash flows from operating activities 
(after dividends and decommissioning, and exclud
ing capital lease obligations and other changes in 
assets and liabilities) for the five year period 1989
1993. The construction program will be modified as 
necessary for changing economic conditions, timeli
ness of rate relief and other relevant factors.  

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 (the Act) significantly 
modified many provisions of the Federal income tax 
law. The modifications include a reduction in the 
corporate income tax rate and repeal of the invest
ment tax credit. Generally, the provisions of the Act 
have had an adverse impact on the Company's 
cash flows from operating activities.  

Long-Term Financing 
During 1988, Iowa Electric issued $100 million of 

long-term debt, the proceeds of which were used to 
redeem $35 million of Series V, 11%, First Mortgage 
Bonds, which matured during 1988, and $30 million 
of Series T, 14.75%, First Mortgage Bonds, due 1991, 
redeemed at par. The remaining proceeds were used 
to repay commercial paper.  

In addition to periodic sinking fund requirements 
and serial redemptions relating to a pollution control 
bond issue, $45 million of Series 1986 Debentures 
and two First Mortgage Bond issues totaling $16.8 
million will mature prior to 1994. Refer to the table 
shown in Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Finan
cial Statements for more details.  

The Indenture pursuant to which Iowa Electric's 
First Mortgage Bonds are issued contains covenants 
restricting the amount of additional bonds which 
may be issued thereunder. At December 31, 1988, 
such restrictions would have allowed Iowa Electric 
to issue $109 million of First Mortgage Bonds.  

The Articles of Incorporation of Iowa Electric au
thorize and limit the aggregate amount of additional 
shares of Cumulative Preferred Stock and Cumula
tive Preference Stock which may be issued. At 
December 31, 1988, under applicable limitations,
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Iowa Electric could issue shares in excess of the 
number currently authorized for both classes of stock.  

Short-Term Financing 
For interim financing, Iowa Electric is authorized 

by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to 
issue up to $75,000,000 of short-term notes, of which 
a maximum of $65,000,000 can be in the form of 
commercial paper. This availability of short-term 
financing provides Iowa Electric flexibility in the 
issuance of long-term securities.  

At December 31, 1988, Iowa Electric had lines of 
credit aggregating $51,000,000, of which $24,800,000 
was being used to support commercial paper. Addi
tionally, Industries had a $10,000,000 line of credit.  

Diversified Activities 
The Company's investment in Telecom*USA and 

other diversified companies increased significantly in 
1988 as compared with 1987. Refer to Note (1)(c) of 
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for 
further information.

Effects of Inflation 
Under the rate making principles prescribed by the 

regulatory commissions to which Iowa Electric is 
subject, only the historical cost of plant is recover
able in revenues as depreciation. As a result, Iowa 
Electric has experienced a loss equivalent to the 
current year's impact of inflation on utility plant.  

In addition, the regulatory process imposes a sub
stantial time lag between the time when operating 
and capital costs are incurred and when they are 
recovered. During periods of inflation, this lag, 
coupled with rates based on historical costs and 
inadequate rates of return allowed on common 
equity, produce revenues which do not recover the 
cost, in terms of purchasing power, of the productive 
facilities used to provide services to current custom
ers. While the inflation gain related to debt and 
preferred stock financing reduces the effect of this 
loss, the common shareholders still experience a net 
erosion in their investment due to inflation. Since 
1984, the inflation rate has ranged from 1% to 4%.

Selected Consolidated Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 
The following unaudited consolidated quarterly data, in the opinion of the Company, includes all adjustments 

.necessary for the fair presentation of such amounts.

1988 
R ev en u es ...................................................................  
O perating incom e .....................................................  
N et in com e ................................................................  
Earnings per average common share........................  

1987 
R ev en u es ...................................................................  
O perating incom e .....................................................  
Income before cumulative effects of 

changes in accounting principles...........................  
Cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting principles .............................................  

N et in com e ................................................................  
Earnings per average common share before 
cumulative effects of changes 
in accounting principles ........................................  

Cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting principles .............................................  

Earnings per average common share........................  

Because the Iowa Electric results of operation are a 
significant portion of the consolidated results, the 
above amounts are affected by seasonal weather 
conditions and the timing of utility rate changes.  

Electric kilowatt-hour sales increased 11%, 3.6%, 
8% and 3.6% during the four quarters of 1988 com
pared to the comparable quarters in the prior year.  
These increases were influenced by abnormal 
weather conditions and the strengthening of the Iowa 
economy. Additionally, Iowa Electric experienced

Quarter Ended 

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 
(in thousands)

$119,542 
16,709 
8,408 

0.60 

$105,271 
17,479 

5,225 

4,547 
9,772 

0.38 

0.34 
0.72

$86,418 
9,224 
6,855 
0.49 

$89,980 
8,730 

3,701 

3,701 

0.27 

0.27

$124,081 
33,128 
16,872 

1.20 

$120,443 
36,946 

17,290 

17,290 

1.25 

1.25

$108,211 
4,847 
2,019 
0.14 

$ 97,084 
9,644 

3,313 

3,313 

0.24 

0.24

increases in gas sales, including transported volumes, 
of 20%, 13%, 5% and 7% during the four quarters of 
1988 primarily as a result of a colder heating season 
than in 1987.  

Net income for the second quarter of 1988 was 
benefited from the initial public offering of Telecon
nect Company. The transaction increased Industries' 
share of Teleconnect's net assets and resulted in a 
$5.8 million pre-tax credit to "Interest expense and 
other - Income from stock transactions of affiliate."
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Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of 
IE Industries Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets and statements of capitalization of IE 
Industries Inc. (an Iowa corporation) and subsidiary 
companies as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, and 
the related consolidated statements of income, 
retained earnings and cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 1988. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with gen
erally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assess
ing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluat
ing the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to 
above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of IE Industries Inc. and subsidiary 
companies as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows for 
each of the three years in the period ended December 
31, 1988, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles.  

As discussed in Notes 1(e) and 2 to the consoli
dated financial statements, during 1987 IE Industries 
Inc.'s wholly-owned subsidiary, Iowa Electric Light 
and Power Company, changed its methods of ac
counting for revenues and for regulatory disallow
ances of cancelled plant costs.  

Chicago, Illinois 
February 3, 1989
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Consolidated Statements of Income 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 

Revenues: 
Electric ....................................................... $314,769 $303,491 $285,448 
Gas ........... ................................................ 103,165 90,171 125,158 
Other ........................................................... 20,318 19,116 18,639 

438,252 412,778 429,245 

Expenses: 
Gas purchased for resale ............................................ 84,153 71,995 99,867 
Fuel for production ..................... ........................ 60,093 56,011 57,234 
Purchased power, net ............................................. 44,697 49,667 46,565 
Operation 

Change in adjustment clause balances ................................ 3,020 (2,048) (107) 
Other...................... .......................... ......... 92,066 88,098 79,019 

Maintenance ............................................ ......... 27,728 24,046 21,188 
Depreciation and amortization ...................................... 38,704 31,784 34,226 
Taxes other than income taxes ....................................... 23,883 20,426 18,982 

374,344 339,979 356,974 

Operating income ......................... ........................ 63,908 72,799 72,271 

Interest expense and other: 
Interest expense ............................................................................................... 27,828 26,193 25,305 
Allowance for funds used during construction.............................................. (1,455) (1,198) (2,375) 
Preferred and preference dividend requirements of subsidiary .................... 1,641 1,812 3,410 
Income from stock transactions of affiliate..................................................... (5,826) (2,344) 
M iscellaneous, net........................................................................................... (1,147) 4,237 (1,187) 

21,041 28,700 25,153 

Income before income taxes and cumulative effects of changes in 
accounting principles .................... ........................ 42,867 44,099 47,118 

Federal and state income taxes ....................................... 8,713 14,570 18,582 

Income before cumulative effects of changes 
in accounting principles ........................................... 34,154 29,529 28,536 

Cumulative effect of discounting recoverable cancelled plant 
costs, net of $1,177,000 income tax benefit.. ........................... - (2,347) 

Cumulative effect of change in method of 
accounting for revenues, less income taxes of $4,599,000 .................- 

Net income - As reported .......................................... $ 34,154 $ 34,076 $ 28,536 

- Pro forma (Notes 1 (e) and 2) ............................ $ 34,154 $ 29,529 $ 23,641 

Average number of common shares outstanding.. ....................... 14,053 13,748 13,408 

Earnings per average common share before 
cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles................. $ 2.43 $ 2.14 $ 2.13 

Cumulative effect of discounting recoverable 
cancelled plant costs ............................................... - (.17) 

Cumulative effect of change in method of 
accounting for revenues ............................................ - .51 

Earnings per average common share -As reported ...................... $ 2.43 $ 2.48 $ 2.13 

-Pro forma (Notes 1 (e) and 2)............. $ 2.43 $ 2.14 $ 1.76 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets--

Assets

Property, plant and equipment, at original cost: 
Utility 
Plant in service 

E le c tric...........................................................................................................................  
G a s .................................................................................................................................  
O th e r ..............................................................................................................................  

Less - Accum ulated depreciation ...................................................................................  

Leased nuclear fuel, net of am ortization ........................................................................  
Construction w ork in progress .......................................................................................  

Other property, net of accumulated depreciation of $4,635,000 and 
$3,066,000, respectively ...............................................

December 31 
1988 1987 

(in thousands)

$ 943,541 
72,010 
31,586 

1,047,137 
410,178 
636,959 

66,200 
26,461 

729,620

$ 905,252 
70,842 
27,639 

1,003,733 
378,635 
625,098 

33,866 
15,373 

674,337

29,979 23,000 
759,599 697,337

Current assets: 
Cash .... ...................................................................... 1,714 1,407 
Accounts receivable 
Customer, less reserve ..................................................... 36,589 35,587 
Other ....................................................................... 9,581 4,816 

Unbilled revenues .......................................................... 12,546 11,224 
Income tax refunds receivable ................................................. 2,694 582 
Production fuel, at average cost.................... .......................... 18,114 15,220 
Materials and supplies, at average cost.................. ....................... 12,947 11,625 
Adjustment clause balances .................................................... - 2,903 
Prepayments and other ...................................................... 13,661 12,816 

107,846 96,180 

Deferred charges and other (Note 11) ........................................... 34,425 41,360 

Investments: 
Telecom*USA (Market value at 12/31/88 - $46,125,000) .......................... 31,939 24,490 
Other diversified companies ................................................. 15,587 2,200 
Nuclear decommissioning trust fund .............. .............................. 3,671 1,223 
Other ................ 3.792............................................... 3,799 2,272 

54,996 30,185 
$ 956,866 $ 865,062 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Capitalization and Liabilities
December 31 

1988 1987
(in thousands) 

Capitalization (See Consolidated Statements of Capitalization): 
Common stock...........................................................$193,640 $187,383 
Retained earnings........................................................... 77,283 71,273 

Total common equity ...................................................... 270,923 258,656 
Preferred stock of subsidiary ................................................. 18,320 18,320 
Redeemable preference stock of subsidiary ....................................... 6,000 8,000 
Long-term debt ............................................................ 302,849 230,471 

598,092 515,447 

Current liabilities: 
Commercial paper ............................................................... 24,800 30,430 
Capital lease obligations ..................................................... 14,507 12,937 
Long-term debt maturities .................................................... 832 36,073 
Debt sinking fund requirements ............................................... 1,033 1,033 
Preference stock sinking fund requirements ...................................... 1,000 1,000 
Accounts payable .......................................................... 47,767 33,865 
Accrued interest ............................................................ 5,344 4,670 
Accrued taxes ............................................................. 21,878 16,586 
Adjustment clause balances ................................................... 117 
Accumulated refueling outage provision .........................................- 2,437 
Other ............... .................................................................... 19,914 12,183 

137,192 151,214 

Other long-term liabilities: 
Capital lease obligations ..................................................... 56,645 26,454 
Other ....................................................................... 13,957 12,006 

70,602 38,460 

Deferred credits: 
Accumulated deferred income taxes ........................................... 107,100 115,042 
Accum ulated deferred investm ent tax credits ................................................................ 43,880 44,899 

150,980 159,941 

Commitments and contingencies (Note 10J 

$956,866 $865,062
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Consolidated Statements of Capitalization 

December 31 
1988 1987 

(in thousands) 

Common equity: 
Common stock - no par value - authorized 24,000,000 shares; 

outstanding 14,164,049 and 13,883,161 shares, respectively ....................................... $193,640 $187,383 
Retained earnings ($20,414,000 restricted as to payment of cash dividends)................ 77,283 71,273 

270,923 258,656 

Cumulative preferred stock: 
Iowa Electric Light and Power Company - par value $50 per share 
authorized 466,406 shares; outstanding 366,406 shares 

6.10% - Outstanding 100,000 shares .......................................... 5,000 5,000 
4.80% - Outstanding 146,406 shares .......................................... 7,320 7,320 
4.30% - Outstanding 120,000 shares .......................................... 6,000 6,000 

18,320 18,320 

Redeemable cumulative preference stock: 
Iowa Electric Light and Power Company - par value $100 per share 
authorized 700,000 shares 
8.55% - Outstanding 70,000 and 90,000 shares ........................................................... 7,000 9,000 
Less - Amount to be redeemed within one year........................................................... 1,000 1,000 

6,000 8,000 

Long-term debt: 
Series 1986 debentures, 8-1/8%, due 1993 ...................................... 45,000 45,000 

Iowa Electric Light and Power Company 
First mortgage bonds 

Series I, 5-1/8%, due 1991 ................................................. 16,000 16,000 
Series J, 6-1/4%, due 1996 .......................... ....................... 15,000 15,000 
Series K, 8-5/8%, due 1999.................... ............................ 20,000 20,000 
Series L, 7-7/8%, due 2000 ................................................. 15,000 15,000 
Series M, 7-5/8%, due 2002 ................................................. 30,000 30,000 
Series 0, 9.80%, due 1991 .................................................. 2,855 3,888 
Series P & Q, 6.70%, due 2006 ............................................... 9,200 9,200 
Series R, 8-1/4%, due 2007 ................................................. 25,000 25,000 
Series T, 14-3/4%, due 1991 .................................................. - 30,000 
Series U, 9-7/8%, due 2000 ................................................. 5,300 5,300 
Series V, 11%, due 1988 ..................................................... - 35,000 
Series W, 9-3/4%, due 1995 ................................................ 50,000 
Series X, 9.42%, due 1995 .................................................. 50,000 

238,355 204,388 
Guarantee of pollution control bonds, 5.73%, $600,000 

due annually 1989-1994; $10,200,000 due 2003 ................................ 13,800 14,600 
252,155 218,988 

Other subsidiaries' debt maturing through 1993 ................................... 8,431 4,599 
305,586 268,587 

Unamortized debt premium and (discount), net ................................... (872) (1,010) 
304,714 267,577 

Less - Amount due within one year .......................................... 1,865 37,106 
302,849 230,471 

$598,092 $515,447 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income before dividends on preferred and 
preference stock of subsidiary ..................................... $35,795 $35,888 $31,946 

Items not requiring cash 
Depreciation and am ortization........................................................................ 38,704 31,784 34,226 
Principal payments under capital lease obligations ...................................... 12,304 9,963 12,080 
Deferred taxes and investment tax credits...................................................... (8,945) 3,045 3,462 
Am ortization of deferred charges.................................................................... 7,122 6,210 5,658 
Refueling outage provision .............................................................................. (2,437) (3,948) 4,494 
Cumulative effect of recording unbilled revenues ......................................... (11,493) 
Discount of recoverable cancelled plant costs ............................................... - 3,524 
Disallowed costs associated with Guthrie County generating station ........... - 3,615 
Income from stock transactions of affiliate..................................................... (5,826) (2,344) 
Allowance for equity funds used during construction .................................. (594) (195) (1,271) 
O th er ................................................................................................................. 3 ,38 7 (98 3) (2 ,6 8 5) 

Other changes in assets and liabilities 
Account receivable, including unbilled revenues ......................................... (7,089) 4,959 2,550 
A ccounts payable............................................................................................. 13,784 (3,387) (4,200) 
A ccrued taxes................................................................................................... 3,181 (1,665) 1,429 
O th er................................................................................................................ 2,703 1,059 (271) 

Net cash flows from operating activities .................................................... 92,089 76,032 87,418 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Dividends on com m on stock ........................................................................... (28,473) (27,370) (26,156) 

-Dividends on preferred and preference stock of subsidiary .......................... (1,641) (1,812) (3,410) 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...................................................... 6,562 7,805 8,106 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ...................................................... 100,253 2,550 46,633 
Net change in commercial paper and short-term notes payable ................... (5,673) 11,730 (2,580) 
Sinking fund requirements and reduction in long-term 
debt and preference stock............. (69,443) :(3,884) (60,897) 

Principal payments under capital lease obligations ...................................... (15,523) (9,619) (12,584) 
O ther................................................................................................... .............. (88) (50) (3,056) 

Net cash flows from financing activities .................................................... (14,026) (20,650) (53,944) 

Cash flows for investing activities: 
Construction expenditures .............................................................................. (65,271) (52,887) (42,618) 
Decom m issioning trust fund ........................................................................... (2,448) (1,223) 
O th er................................................................................................................. (10 ,037) (1,446) 2,482 

Net cash flows for investing activities........................................................ (77,756) (55,556) (40,136) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and temporary cash investments .............. 307 (174) (6,662) 

Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of period.............. 1,407 1,581 8,243 

Cash and temporary cash investments at end of period. .................. $ 1,714 $ 1,407 $ 1,581 

Supplemental cash flow information: 
Cash paid during the period for 

Interest ....................................................... $29,914 $28,606 $28,028 

Income taxes ................................................... $16,452 $17,286 $13,241 

Capital lease obligations of $44,064,000, $2,013,000 and $14,117,000, respectively, for 1988-1986 were incurred for nuclear fuel.  

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 

Balance at beginning of year............................................................................. $ 71,273 $64,192 $62,161 
Add: 

N et incom e ....................................................................................................... 34,154 34,076 28,536 
Tax benefit resulting from the deduction of ESOP dividends ....................... 329 375 585 

105,756 98,643 91,282 

Deduct: 
Cash dividends declared on common stock, at per share rates 

of $2.025, $1.99, and $1.95, respectively ..................................................... 28,473 27,370 26,156 
Preference stock redemption premiums of subsidiary ................................... - - 934 

28,473 27,370 27,090 

Balance at end of year 
($20,414,000 restricted as to payment of cash dividends) ................ $77,283 $71,273 $64,192 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

(a) Basis of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the 

accounts of IE Industries Inc. (Industries) and its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries (the Company), of which 
the principal operating companies are Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company (Iowa Electric) and the 
Cedar Rapids and Iowa City Railway Company 
(CRANDIC). All significant intercompany balances 
and transactions have been eliminated from the con
solidated financial statements.  

(b) Regulation 
Industries is currently exempt from regulation 

under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 
1935. Iowa Electric is subject to regulation by the 
Iowa Utilities Board (IUB) and the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC).  

(c) Investments in Diversified Companies 
In December, 1988, the stockholders of Telecon

nect Company (Teleconnect) approved the merger of 
Teleconnect and SouthernNet, Inc. Pursuant to the 
terms of the merger, Teleconnect became a wholly
owned subsidiary of Telecom*USA (Telecom). Each 
share of Teleconnect common stock outstanding 
immediately prior to the merger was converted into 
one share of Telecom common stock. Industries 
owns 2,460,000 shares or 9% of Telecom. Industries 
has accounted for the Teleconnect investment using 
the equity method; the cost method will be used to 
account for the Telecom investment.  

In May, 1988, Teleconnect sold 3,200,000 shares 
of its common stock in an initial public offering at 
$18.00 per share. The transaction increased Indus-

tries' share of Teleconnect's net assets and resulted in 
a $5,826,000 pre-tax credit to "Interest expense and 
other - Income from stock transactions of affiliate." 

In 1987, Teleconnect privately placed 1,554,000 
shares of original issue common stock at a price sig
nificantly in excess of book value. As a result, Indus
tries' share of Teleconnect's net assets increased 
resulting in a $2,344,000 pre-tax credit to "Interest 
expense and other - Income from stock transactions 
of affiliate." 

In April, 1988, Industries purchased a 23.5% equity 
investment in Long Lines, Ltd. (Long Lines), a rapidly 
growing telecommunications company headquartered 
in Sergeant Bluff, Iowa. Long Lines is also involved in 
developing real estate for recreational purposes. At 
December 31, 1988, Industries' investment exceeded 
its equity ownership in the net assets of Long Lines 
by $6,600,000. This amount is being amortized over a 
forty year period.  

(d) Depreciation 
Iowa Electric's provision for depreciation, except 

for the Duane Arnold Energy Center (DAEC), is based 
on straight-line composite rates. The average rate was 
3.4%, 3.3% and 3.7% of the cost of depreciable 
electric property for 1988-1986, respectively. The av
erage rate for gas property was 3.0% for 1988-1986.  

The DAEC is currently being depreciated over a 36 
year life using a remaining life method. Based on a 
study completed in 1985, Iowa Electric's 70% share 
of the cost to decommission the DAEC approximated 
$107 million in 1985 dollars. Iowa Electric began 
external funding of revenues collected for future de
commissioning costs in 1987. The total decommis
sioning funds accumulated at December 31, 1988 
were $25,380,000 including $21,709,000 of an inter
nal decommissioning reserve recorded as accumu
lated depreciation.
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(e) Revenues 
In 1987, Iowa Electric began accruing revenue for 

service rendered but unbilled at month-end in order 
to more properly match monthly revenue with the 
cost of service provided to customers. The cumula
tive effect of this change and pro forma effects on 
income are shown in the Consolidated Statements 
of Income. The pro forma information presents the 
financial results which would have been experi
enced had Iowa Electric been accounting for reve
nues under its current method throughout the 
periods.  

(f) Allowance for Funds Used 
During Construction 

The allowance for funds used during construction 
(AFC), which represents the cost during the con
struction period of funds used for construction 
purposes, is capitalized by Iowa Electric as a compo
nent of the cost of utility plant. The amount of AFC 
applicable to debt funds and to other (equity) funds, 
a non-cash item, is computed in accordance with the 
formula prescribed by FERC. The aggregate gross 
rates for 1988-1986 were.9.3%, 8.2% and 10.8%, 
respectively.  

(g) Adjustment Clauses 
Iowa Electric's electric tariffs include an energy 

adjustment clause (EAC) designed to reflect the 
current costs of fuel, including nuclear fuel and an 
estimated cost associated with nuclear waste dis
posal, and the energy portion of purchased power in 
billings to customers. The clause is based on the 
estimated cost of fuel consumed and the estimated 
energy cost of purchased power for the current and 
immediately preceding months. A correction factor 
is included to reflect previous over-or-under collec
tions of revenue resulting from variances between 
the actual cost of fuel consumed and the amount 
included in billings to customers. Iowa Electric 
records the change in over-or-under collections by 
charging or crediting operation expense. The cumu
lative effect is reflected in the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as a current asset or current liability, pending 
automatic reflection in future billings to customers.  

Iowa Electric's gas tariffs include clauses designed 
to reflect changes in the cost of gas purchased for 
resale on a current basis. These clauses are ac
counted for in a manner similar to the EAC.  

(h) Accumulated Refueling Outage Provision 
The IUB allows Iowa Electric to collect, as part of 

its base revenues, funds to offset operation and 
maintenance expenditures incurred during refueling 
outages at the DAEC. As these revenues are col
lected, an equivalent amount is charged to other op
eration and maintenance expenses with a corre
s onding credit to the reserve. During a refueling 
outage, the reserve is reversed to offset the increased 
ex enditures.

(i) Income Taxes 
Federal income tax expense includes provisions for 

deferred taxes to reflect the tax effects of timing dif
ferences between when certain costs are recorded in 
the accounts and are deducted for tax return pur
poses. As these timing differences reverse, the 
related accumulated deferred income taxes are 
reversed to income.  

Consistent with rate making practices, deferred 
taxes are not provided on certain timing differences.  
At December 31, 1988 Federal and state deferred 
income taxes have not been provided on cumulative 
net tax timing differences of $80,000,000 and 
$192,000,000, respectively. Iowa Electric believes 
that the income taxes payable in the future, due to 
the reversal of such timing differences, will be 
recovered through the rate making process.  

The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96 
(SFAS 96) which establishes accounting and report
ing standards for the effects of income taxes. The 
Company is required to adopt the new accounting 
and disclosure requirements of SFAS 96 prior to 
1991. When adopted, the Company will record the 
cumulative effect of SFAS 96. Adjustments to 
accumulated deferred income taxes will be recorded 
for (1) additional deferred income tax liabilities not 
provided as a result of rate making practices and (2) 
the effects of income tax rate changes. It is expected 
that such adjustments will be essentially offset by 
regulatory assets and liabilities. Although the 
amount of such adjustments has not yet been deter
mined, the Company does not anticipate a significant 
impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income.  

Investment tax credits are utilized to offset Federal 
income taxes which otherwise would be currently 
payable. Such credits are deferred and are subse
quently credited to income over the lives of the 
property which gave rise to the credits.  

(j) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
The Company has adopted SFAS 95, "Statement of 

Cash Flows". Prior years Consolidated Statements of 
Changes in Financial Position have been reclassified 
to conform to the 1988 presentation.  

(2) Rate Matters: 

Tax Reform Act of 1986 
In order to reflect the effects of the Tax Reform Act 

of 1986, Iowa Electric filed with the IUB to reduce 
electric rates on an annual basis by $5.6 million; the 
reduction went into effect on July 1, 1987. Although 
the IUB allowed the reduction to be placed into 
effect, it rejected Iowa Electric's electric filing assert
ing that such rate reduction was deficient and should 
be approximately $3.0 million greater. Iowa Electric 
filed with the Iowa District Court for Linn County 
(Linn County District Court) for judicial review of the 
alleged deficiency. On June 28, 1988, the Linn
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County District Court issued an order which af
firmed the IUB order. Iowa Electric has appealed to 
the Iowa Supreme Court and a decision is not 
expected until mid-1989. Iowa Electric has reserved 
for the amount in dispute, including interest.  

1986 Electric Rate Case 
On April 25, 1986, Iowa Electric applied to the 

IUB for an electric rate increase to be charged to 
Iowa retail customers. Of the amount requested, 
$43.9 million on an annual basis, an interim in
crease of $19.2 million was allowed by the IUB 
effective July 24, 1986. On April 2, 1987, the IUB 
issued its final Order establishing rates based on an 
increase of $25.1 million. Such rates were placed 
into effect on May 8, 1987.  

In its Order, the IUB disallowed $5.2 million of 
AFC recorded for the cancelled Guthrie County 
generating station. The disallowed AFC, net of an 
amount reserved in prior years, was written-off in 
March, 1987 and is reflected in "Interest expense 
and other - Miscellaneous, net." The disallowance 
was based on an interpretation of state law regard
ing when construction began. Iowa Electric believes 
that the IUB is in error on this matter and has ap
pealed to the Iowa District Court for Polk County for 
relief from this finding. On September 30, 1988 the 
District Court issued an order affirming the IUB on 
this matter. Iowa Electric has filed a Notice of 
Appeal with the Iowa Supreme Court.  

The IUB Order did allow recovery of the remain
ing costs associated with cancelled generating 
projects, but without rate base treatment. In accor
dance with SFAS 90, Iowa Electric recorded an 
adjustment in March, 1987 to discount the future 
revenues associated with such costs. The cumula
tive effect of such discounting and pro forma effect 
on income, assuming the change would have been 
applied retroactively, are shown in the Consolidated 
Statements of Income for the year ended December 
31, 1987. The pro forma information presents the 
financial results which would have been experi
enced had Iowa Electric discounted the recoverable 
cancelled plant costs at the date of cancellation in 
February, 1986.  

The Office of Consumer Advocate filed a Notice of 
Appeal to the Iowa District Court for Polk County on 
certain issues including recovery of a portion of the 
coal contract termination costs, recovery of certain 
future nuclear decommissioning costs, and recovery 
of a portion of the cancelled Guthrie County gener
ating station costs. On September 30, 1988, the Polk 
County District Court issued its Order denying the 
Consumer Advocate's appeal and affirming the IUB 
on all matters. The Consumer Advocate has filed a 
Notice of Appeal with the Iowa Supreme Court.  
Iowa Electric believes the probability that the Con
sumer Advocate will be successful in its appeal is 
remote. Accordingly, no refund liabilities have 
been recorded.

1983 Electric Rate Case 
In August, 1988, the Iowa Supreme Court issued its 

Order affirming the IUB rate order as orginally issued 
and, as a result, no refund liabilities exist.  

(3) Leases: 

Iowa Electric has a nuclear fuel lease covering its 
70% undivided interest in the nuclear fuel purchased 
for the DAEC. Future purchases of fuel may also be 
added to the fuel lease. This capital lease provides for 
annual one year extensions which Iowa Electric pres
ently intends to exercise to a date not later than De
cember 31, 2023. Interest costs under the lease are 
based on costs incurred by the lessor on commercial 
paper. Iowa Electric is responsible for the payment of 
taxes, maintenance, operating cost, risk of loss and 
insurance relating to the leased fuel.  

The lessor has a credit agreement with a bank sup
porting the nuclear fuel lease. The agreement is 
scheduled to terminate December 31, 1991, but will 
continue on a year to year basis unless either party 
provides at least a three year notice of termination.  
The maximum amount of financing available under 
the agreement is currently $80 million.  

Annual nuclear fuel lease expenses include the cost 
of fuel, based on the quantity of heat produced for thp 
generation of electric energy, plus the lessor's interest 
costs related to fuel in the reactor and administrative 
expenses. These expenses (included in fuel for pro- .  
duction) for 1988-1986 were $13,684,000, $11,541,000 
and $13,708,000, respectively.  

Iowa Electric is operating the Prairie Creek Generat
ing Station Units 1, 2 and 3, under a ten year capital 
lease agreement. Iowa Electric expects to purchase 
the units in 1989 for approximately $5,000,000. The 
lease payments (included in other operation expenses) 
for 1988-1986 were $1,101,000 annually.  

Operating lease rental expenses were $7,648,000, 
$7,852,000 and $7,444,000 for 1988-1986, respec
tively.  

Future minimum lease payments, which include the 
estimated annual expenses for fuel currently under 
Iowa Electric's nuclear fuel lease, are as follows:

Year 

1989 ...................  
1990 ....................  
1991 ...................  
1992 ......... .........  
1993 ......... .........  
1994-2005 ..............  

Less: Amount 
representing interest ........  

Present value of 
net minimum lease 
obligations ............

Capital Operating 
Leases Leases 

(in thousands) 
$15,598 $ 4,169 

12,607 3,633 
10,925 3,328 
11,511 3,175 

8,236 3,248 
44,875 29,631 

103,752 $47,184 

32,600 

$ 71,152
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(4) Income Taxes: 

Federal and state income taxes as set forth in the Consolidated Statements of Income are comprised
of the following:

Federal income taxes: 
C u rren t .............................................................................................................  
Deferred 

Unbilled revenues..........................................................................................  
Coal contract term ination costs ....................................................................  
Plant abandonm ents ......................................................................................  
Refueling outage provision ...........................................................................  
Internal decom m issioning............................................................................  
Depreciation...................................................................................................  
O th er ..............................................................................................................  
P rio r y e ars ......................................................................................................  

Investment tax credits 
D e ferre d .........................................................................................................  
Am ortization and other .................................................................................  

Total Federal incom e taxes ....................................................................  

State income taxes: 
C u rren t .............................................................................................................  
Deferred 

* Unbilled revenues .........................................................................................  
Coal contract term ination costs....................................................................  
Plant abandonm ents .....................................................................................  
Refueling outage provision ..........................................................................  

Internal decom m issioning ............................................................................  
Depreciation ..................................................................................................  
O th er .............................................................................................................  
P rio r y ears .....................................................................................................  

Total state incom e taxes..........................................................................  
Total incom e taxes ..................................................................................

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 

$12,671 $11,060 $11,786

(1,196) 
(3,142) 

(231) 
879 

1,313 
(1,503) 
(2,215) 

987 
(2,005) 
5,558

3,590 
(3,615) 

(676) 
2,058 

(6,176) 
6,700 
1,489 

(1,777) 

1,911 
(1,941) 
12,623

(963) 
3,998 

(2,067) 

3,561 
6,984 

(7,153) 

1,645 
(1,847) 
15,944

4,987 3,905 3,289

(273) 
(717) 

(53) 
240 

(395) 
(311) 
(323) 

3,155 
$ 8,713

817 
1,771 

681 
(223) 

(1,685) 
(484) 
846 

(259) 

5,369 
$17,992

(484) 
666 

(833) 
2,638 

$18,582

Included in Consolidated Statements of Income as: 
Federal and state income taxes ....................................................................... $ 8,713 $14,570 $18,582 
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles ............................... - 3,422 

$ 8,713 $17,992 $18,582 

The overall effective income tax rates shown below were computed by dividing total income tax expense by 
income before income taxes. Year Ended December 31 

1988 1987 1986 

Statutory Federal income tax rate.................................................................... 34.0% 40.0% 46.0% 
Add (deduct): 

Allowance for funds used during construction............................................. (1.2) (0.9) (2.3) 
Amortization of investment tax credits ......................................................... (4.7) (3.7) (4.0) 
Amortization through tariffs of certain accumulated 

deferred income taxes over five and seven years ....................................... (6.9) (6.3) (7.5) 
Preferred and preference dividend requirements of subsidiary ................... 1.3 1.4 3.3 
State income taxes, net of Federal benefits ................................................... 6.8 5.1 4.0 
A djustm ent of prior period taxes ................................................................... (4.1) (2.1) (1.4) 
Reversal through tariffs of deferred taxes provided at rates in excess 
- of the current statutory Federal income tax rate ........................................ (3.5) (.8) 
O th er item s, n et .............................................................................................. (1.4) 1.9 1.3 

Overall effective income tax rate...................................................................... 20.3% 34.6% 39.4%
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(5) Retirement Plan: 

The Company has a non-contributory retirement 
plan which covers substantially all of its employees.  
Plan benefits are based on years of service and com
pensation during the employees' latter years of em
ployment. Payments made from the pension fund to 
retired employees and beneficiaries during 1988 
totaled $5,727,000.  

The Company's policy is to expense and fund the 
pension cost determined using the frozen entry age 
actuarial cost method, provided that this amount is at 
least equal to the minimum funding requirements

mandated by the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act (ERISA) and does not exceed the maxi
mum tax deductible amount for the year.  

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 87 
effective January 1, 1987. However, Industries' major 
subsidiary is Iowa Electric, a public utility subject to 
the provisions of SFAS 71. Therefore, certain adjust
ments are necessary in order to reflect the amount of 
annual pension cost allowed in Iowa Electric's most 
recent rate case.  

The components of the 1988 and 1987 pension 
provision are as follows:

1988

Service cost..........................................................................................................................  
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ......................................................................  
Assumed return on plan assets (actual return on plan assests were $10,603,000 

and $4,723,000, respectively) .........................................................................................  
Am ortization of unrecognized plan asset as of January 1, 1987 .......................................  
SFAS 87 pension cost .........................................................................................................  
Adjustm ent to funding level...............................................................................................  
Total pension costs paid to the Trustee .............................................................................

1987
(in thousands) 

$2,142 $2,226 
5,854 5,558

(6,527) 
(261) 

1,208 
1,433 

$2,641

(6,449) 
(261) 

1,074 
1,44 

$2,516

Total pension cost paid to the Trustee was $2,786,000 for 1986.  
A reconciliation of the funded status of the Plan under SFAS 87 to the amounts recognized in the Consoli

dated Balance Sheets is presented below: 
December 31 

1988 1987 
(in thousands)

Fair market value of plan assets ............................................  
Actuarial present value of benefits rendered to date 
Accumulated benefits based on compensation to date, including 

vested benefits of $55,839,000 and $52,893,000, respectively ..................  
Additional benefits based on estimated future salary levels .....................  
Projected benefit obligation ..............................................  

Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation ............................  
Remaining unrecognized net asset existing at 

January 1, 1987, being amortized over 20 years ..............................  
Unrecognized net gain ...................................................  
Prepaid pension cost recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets..............  

Assumed rate of return ...................................................  

Weighted average discount rate of projected benefit obligation ...................  

Assumed rate of increase in future compensation levels ........................

In addition to providing pension benefits, the 
Company provides certain health care benefits for 
retired employees. The costs of such benefits are

$91,168 $83,650

62,876 
17,429 
80,305 
10,863 

(4,695) 
(3,293) 

$ 2,875 

8.00% 

7.75% 

5.75%

58,436 
13,420 
71,856 
11,794 

(4,956) 
(5,396) 

$ 1,442 

8.00% 

8.25% 

5.75%

expensed as claims are paid. Such costs totaled 
$1,134,000, $914,000 and $754,000 for 1988-1986, 
respectively.

1988 1987
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(6) Changes in Outstanding Shares of Common Stock: 

The following table presents information relating to the issuance of common stock: 

Common Stock

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1985 ..............................................................................  
Stock plan issuances* ...................................................................................  

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1986 ..............................................................................  
Stock plan issuances* ...................................................................................  

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1987 ..............................................................................  
Stock plan issuances** .................................................................................  

Balance, Decem ber 31, 1988 ..............................................................................

Number of 
Shares 

13,172,893 
375,548 

13,548,441 
334,7 20 

13,883,161 
280,888 

14,164,049

Amount 
(in thousands) 

$171,472 
8,106 

179,578 
7, 805 

187,383 
6,257 

$193,640

* Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Employees' Stock Ownership Plan 

** Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Long-Term Incentive Plan of 1987 

Shares reserved for issuance pursuant to the stock plans totaled 1,478,438 at December 31, 1988.

(7) Preferred and Preference Stock: 

Industries has 5,000,000 shares of Cumulative 
Preferred Stock, no par value, authorized for issu
ance, of which none is issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 1988.  

The 6.10%, 4.80% and 4.30% Series of lowa 
Electric Cumulative Preferred Stock are redeemable 
at the option of Iowa Electric upon 30 days' notice at 
$51.00, $50.25 and $51.00 per share, respectively, 
plus accrued dividends.

Iowa Electric Cumulative Preference Stock aggre
gating $2,000,000 in both 1988 and 1987 and 
$4,094,000 in 1986 was redeemed at par under 
mandatory and optional sinking fund provisions.  
Annual sinking fund redemptions of $1,000,000 will 
be required in 1989-1993. The Series 8.55% is 
redeemable at the option of Iowa Electric upon 30 
days' notice at $104.28 through October 1, 1993 and 
at $102.14 thereafter.
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(8) Long-Term Debt: 

Iowa Electric's Indenture securing its First Mort
gage Bonds constitutes a direct first mortgage lien 
upon substantially all tangible public utility property 
of Iowa Electric.

Total sinking fund requirements and debt maturi
ties for 1989-1993 are as follows. The table pertains 
to Iowa Electric unless otherwise noted.

Debt Maturities
Sinking Fund 

Requirements* 

$2,243,000 

2,083,000 

1,050,000 

1,050,000 

1,050,000

Debt Issue

Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Series I 
Series 0 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt 
Industries' Series 

1986 Debentures 
Pollution Control 
Other Subsidiaries' 

Debt

Maturity Date

11/1/89 

Various 
11/1/90 

Various 
1/1/91 
7/1/91 

11/1/91 

Various 
11/1/92 

Various 

9/1/93 
11/1/93 

Various

Amount

$ 600,000 

1,794,000** 
600,000 

4,122,000** 
16,000,000 

790,000 
600,000 

197,000 
600,000 

197,000

45,000,000 
600,000 

2,121,000

* Includes annual sinking fund requirements of $1,210,000 for 1989 and $1,050,000 for the years 1990-1993 which, by 
terms of the Indenture under which Series I, J, K, L, M and R Bonds have been issued, may be satisfied by the pledging of 
additional property. Iowa Electric intends to meet the 1989 requirements for these issues by this means.  

** Company intends to refinance the majority of this debt with long-term debt.  

The Series P, Q and U Bonds secure tbe obligation of Iowa Electric with respect to three series of pollution 
control revenue bonds issued by three Iowa municipalities.  

(9) Short-Term Borrowings: which $24,800,000 was being used to support com
mercial paper. Commitment fees are paid to maintain 

At December 31, 1988, Industries had an unused these lines. There are no contractual restrictions 
line of credit in the amount of $10,000,000. Iowa placed on the withdrawal of these funds.  
Electric had lines of credit totaling $51,000,000, of

(10) Commitments and Contingencies: 

Construction Program 
The Company's construction program for 1989 

anticipates expenditures aggregating approximately 
$60,000,000 for which substantial commitments have 
been made.  

Long-Term Power Purchase Contract 
Iowa Electric has a power purchase contract, as 

amended, with the City of Muscatine, Iowa for 
capacity purchases of 90 Mw through May, 1991

and 70 Mw for the final two years ending May, 1993.  
The cost of such capacity purchases, along with Iowa 
Electric's proportionate share of operating and main
tenance costs, are reflected in purchased power in 
the Consolidated Statements of Income and will ap
proximate $30,000,000 in 1989.  

Nuclear Fuel 
In September, 1985, the U.S. District Court in 

Colorado issued a decision holding that the Depart-
ment of Energy's (DOE) Utility Services Contract 
which provides for the enrichment of uranium fuel

Year 

1989 

1990 

1991 

1992 

1993

Total

$4,637,000 

6,805,000 

18,637,000 

1,847,000

48,771,000
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for U.S. nuclear power plants violates the DOE's ura
nium enrichment criteria and is "null and void." That 
ruling was ultimately appealed to the U.S. Supreme 
Court and on August 4, 1988, that Court issued its 
decision which allows the DOE to enrich foreign 
supplied uranium pending matters remanded to the 
District Court. On February 1, 1989, the District Court 
ordered the matters dismissed without prejudice. The 
Company believes the probability of new litigation 
being filed is remote.  

In January, 1988, Iowa Electric took delivery of 
foreign uranium hexaflouride for future processing 
into nuclear fuel. Such quantities are expected to 
fulfill Iowa Electric's nuclear fuel requirements 
through 1994.  

Nuclear Insurance Programs 
The Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988 

(1988 Act) provides Iowa Electric with the benefit of 
$7.3 billion of public liability coverage consisting of 
$200,000,000 of insurance and $7.1 billion of poten
tial retroactive assessments from the owners of each 
nuclear power plant.  

Pursuant to provisions in various nuclear insurance 
policies, Iowa Electric could be assessed retroactive 
premiums in connection with a future accident at a 
iluclear facility owned by a utility participating in the 
particular insurance plan. Under the 1988 Act, Iowa 
Electric could be assessed a maximum of $63,000,000 
per nuclear incident, with a maximum of $10,000,000 
per year (of which lowa Electric's 70% ownership 
portion would be $44,100,000 and $7,000,000, respec
tively), if losses relating to the accidents exceeded 
$200,000,000. With respect to excess property damage 
and replacement power coverages, Iowa Electric could 
be assessed a maximum of $5,000,000 and $929,000, 
respectively, if the insurer's losses relating to an 
accident exceeded its reserves. No such assessments 
have been made under these policy provisions.  

IRS Audit 
Iowa Electric's Federal income tax returns for the 

years 1982-1984 were audited by the Internal Revenue 
Service. The Revenue Agent's Report includes certain 
proposed adjustments with which Iowa Electric 
disagrees. The most significant proposed adjustment 
relates to payments made in 1984 for the termination 
of a coal contract. The agent has disallowed a deduc
tion in that year, contending that an intangible asset 
was created by the payments. Iowa Electric disagrees 
with that position and has filed a protest with the 
District Director of Internal Revenue in Des Moines, 
Iowa. Iowa Electric believes that it will be successful 
and the proposed adjustment will be dismissed.  
Should this adjustment be upheld, Iowa Electric 
would not anticipate a material adverse impact on the 
income statement. The contested tax amounts have 
been deferred and such deferrals would be credited to 
income at the time the current tax liability would be 
recorded. There would, however, be a significant

impact on cash flow since Iowa Electric would have 
to pay a tax assessment of approximately $9 million 
for the three year period as well as interest.  

(11) Deferred Charges: 

Coal Contract Termination 
In 1984 and 1985, Iowa Electric terminated coal 

contracts with two suppliers at a cost of $27,511,000.  
The termination payments are being recovered in 
rates; the retail portion over a four year period com
mencing in 1987. Recovery of related interest costs 
and inclusion of the unrecorded costs in rate base 
was disallowed by the IUB. At December 31, 1988, 
unamortized coal contract termination costs were 
$11,683,000.  

Cancelled Plant 
The costs of cancelled plant ($11,252,000) are 

being amortized over 10 years, commencing in 1987, 
as they are collected in rates. Refer to Note 2 for 
more information. At December 31, 1988, unamor
tized costs of cancelled plant were $9,401,000.  

(12) Guarantees: 

At December 31, 1988, Industries or its subsidiary, 
Iowa Electric, have guaranteed $1,339,000 of loans 
primarily in connection with economic development 
activities.  

(13) Jointly-Owned Electric Utility Plant: 

Under joint ownership agreements with other Iowa 
utilities. Iowa Electric has undivided ownership 
interests in two electric generating stations and 
related transmission facilities. Each of the respective 
owners was responsible for the issuance of its own 
securities to finance its portion of the construction 
costs. Kilowatt-hour generation and operating 
expenses are divided on the same basis as ownership 
with each owner reflecting its respective costs in its 
Statements of Income. Information relative to Iowa 
Electric's ownership interest in these facilities at 
December 31, 1988 is as follows: 

Ottumwa 

DAEC Unit 1 

(in thousands)

Utility plant in service ............  

Accumulated depreciation .....  

Construction work in progress 

Plant capacity - Mw.......  

Iowa Electric's share ...............  

In-service date .........................

$392,582 

$129,767 

$ 13,962 

500 

70% 

1974

$62,110 

$14,832 

$ 119 

675 

15% 

1981
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(14) Segments of Business: 

The principal subsidiary of Industries is Iowa Elec- and in the purchase, distribution and sale of natural 
tric, a utility engaged primarily in the generation, gas. Certain financial information relating to Indus
transmission, distribution and sale of electric energy tries' segments of business is presented below: 

Year Ended December 31 
1988 1987 1986 

(in thousands) 

Operating results: 
Revenues 

Electric ...................................................... $314,769 303,491 $285,448 
Gas .......................................................... 102,524 90,401 125,441 
Railroad ....................................................... 10,689 10,270 11,037 

Operating income 
Electric.......................................................$61,191 $64,185 $55,851 
Gas ........................ . ........................ ....... (2,349) 3,605 9,112 
Railroad ................... . ........................ .......... 4,283 4,590 5,818 

Other information: 
Depreciation 

Electric ....................................................... $35,774 $29,159 $31,758 
Gas ................................................. ........... 2,105 2,048 2,021 
Railroad ................ . .......................... ............. 165 157 146 

Construction expenditures 
Electric.......................................................$54,255 $41,045 $34,788 
Gas ...................... ........................... .......... 2,735 2,729 1,843 
Railroad ................ . ........................... .......... 1,788 1,696 835 

Assets
Identifiable assets* 

Electric ................................................ .... $751,325 $691,110 $689,327 
Gas ....................... ............................ ...... 55,005 58,622 54,152 
Railroad ................. . ............................ ...... 21,414 25,285 22,090 

827,744 775,017 765,569 
Other corporate assets ............................................ 129,122 90,045 85,641 

Total consolidated assets........................................ $956,866 $865,062 $851,210 

* Includes net utility plant, leased nuclear fuel, production fuel, materials and supplies, and other identifiable assets.
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data 

1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 
Income statement data (000's): 

Operating revenue ................................... $438,252 $412,778 $429,245 $461,798 $476,706 $452,925 
Operating income .................................... 63,908 72,799 72,271 56,286 71,966 66,334 
Net incom e ............................................... 34,154 29,529* . 28,536 19,056 30,023 23,289 

Common stock data: 
Average number of shares 

outstanding (000's) ................................ 14,053 13,748 13,408 12,973 12,445 10,901 
Earnings per average common share ...... $ 2.43 $ 2.14* $ 2.13 $ 1.47 $ 2.41 $ 2.14 
Return on average common equity ......... 12.9% 11.8%* 12.0% 8.2% 13.5% 11.6% 
Dividends declared per common share.. $ 2.025 $ 1.99 $ 1.95 $ 1.91 $ 1.855 $ 1.795 
Annual dividend rate at end of year ....... 2.04 2.02 1.98 1.94 1.90 1.84 
Market price per common share 

at year-end............................................. 22.63 22.63 23.38 20.75 18.00 14.88 
Book value per common share 

at year-end............................................. 19.13 18.63 17.99 17.73 18.16 17.75 
Ratio of market price to book value 

at year-end............................................. 118% 121% 130% 117% 98% 84% 

Capitalization (000,000's): 
Common equity ....................................... $271 45 $259 47 $244 46 $234 43 $230 45 $215 43 
Preferred and preference stock ............... 24 4 26 4 28 5 51 10 55 11 57 11 
Long-term debt......................................... 303 51 230 49 265 49 252 47 220 44 233 46 

$598 100 $515 100 $537 100 $537 100 $505 100 $505 100 

Other selected financial data: 
Total assets (000's) ........ $........ 956,866 $ 865,062 $ 851,210 $ 850,918 $831,202 $800,049 
Investments in diversified companies .... 86,305 53,969 43,945 40,158 19,458 14,247 
-Construction expenditures 

including AFC (000's) ........................... $ 65,271 $ 52,887 $ 42,618 $ 47,866 $ 39,404 $ 48,110 
Percent of construction expenditures 

financed internally from operations .... 54% 65% 100% 72% 100% 99% 
Times interest earned 

before income taxes .................... 2.60 3.06 3.00 2.32 3.04 2.74 
Number of Iowa Electric preferred 

and preference shareholders ........... 2,070 2,161 2,222 2,802 3,006 3,121 
Number of common shareholders........... 26,353 27,414 29,869 32,348 32,805 31,768 

*Before cumulative effects of changes in accounting principles.  

Selected Financial Data-I0 
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 

Utility plant in service (000's) 
Electric ................................................. $ 943,541 $ 905,252 $870,818 $838,139 $787,500 $764,696 
Gas ....................................................... 72,010 70,842 -70,785 71,126 69,586 67,173 
Other .................................................... 31,586 27,639 22,761 22,512 20,021 14,902 

$1047137 $1,003,733 $964,364 $931,777 $877,107 $846,771 

Accumulated depreciation (000's) .......... $ 410,178 $ 378,635 $354,641 $332,783 $303,233 $275,500 
Ratio of accumulated depreciation to 

utility plant in service .......................... 39% 38% 37% 36% 35% 33% 
AFC as a percent of net income .............. 4% 3% 8% 9% 4% 14% 
Times interest earned 

before income taxes .............................. 2.65 3.21 3.10 2.32 3.05 2.74 
Construction expenditures 

including AFC (000's) ........................... $61,944 $47,649 $40,111 $45,427 $38,793 $47,874 
Poorcent of construction expenditures 

financed internally from operations .... 56% 69% 100% 69% 100% 94%
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Electric Operating Comparison- 181 

Five Year 
Compound 

Rate of 
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 Growth 

Operating revenue (000's): 
Residential ..................................... $121,488 $114,395 $100,067 $ 99,309 $ 98,882 $ 92,229 
Rural ............................................... 17,139 16,826 16,801 16,858 17,233 16,106 
Commercial .................................... 90,230 87,996 86,111 86,059 89,500 83,019 
Industrial........................................ 67,179 66,448 65,537 70,562 73,629 66,332 
Street lighting and 
public authorities ......................... 4,229 4,26 4161 4,34 4,36 4,15 
Total from ultimate consumers . 300,265 289,933 272,677 277,134 283,611 261,836 

Sales for resale ............................... 13,415 12,556 11,641 13,282 12,883 13,447 
Other ............................................... 1,089 1,00 1,13 1,20 1,04 911 

$314,769 $303,491 $285,448 $291,624 $297,538 $276,194 

Energy sales (000's Kwh): 
Residential ..................................... 1,313,852 1,232,622 1,215,722 1,174,150 1,209,678 1,272,030 0.6% 
Rural ............................................... 201,877 193,908 213,431 208,491 210,958 212,775 (1.1) 
Commercial .................................... 1,223,644 1,143,103 1,118,493 1,072,674 1,071,934 1,066,847 2.8 
Industrial........................................ 1,579,569 1,485,476 1,440,276 1,391,573 1,365,959 1,290,168 4.1 
Street lighting and 
public authorities ......................... 52,550 50,572 48,643 51,117 52,952 55,030 (0.9) 
Total to ultimate consumers ...... 4,371,492 4,105,681 4,036,565 3,898,005 3,911,481 3,896,850 2.3 

Sales for resale ............................... 332,837 312,324 307,759 296,629 294,047 322,436 0.6 
4,704,329 4,418,005 4,344,324 4,194,634 4,205,528 4,219,286 2.2 

Sources of electric energy (000's Kwh): 
Generated 

Fossil, primarily coal ................. 1,900,288 1,946,916 1,844,564 1,524,106 1,079,576 1,608,895 
Nuclear ....................................... 2,214,243 1,766,319 2,095,334 1,348,821 1,889,865 1,615,878 
Hydro .......................................... 3,300 5,153 5,595 3,892 5,517 6,309 

4,117,831 3,718,388 3,945,493 2,876,819 2,974,958 3,231,082 
Purchased and net interchange ..... 991,713 1,076,115 751,634 1,705,08 1,588,615 1,377,310 

5,109,544 4,794,503 4,697,127 4,581,899 4,563,573 4,608,392 

Operating statistics: 
Heat rate 

(Btu per Kwh generated) ............ 11,409 11,359 11,212 11,495 11,657 11,591 
Net capability at time of 
peak load (Kw) 

Net generating capability 
Steam stations 
Nuclear* ................................. 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 
Fossil ...................................... 535,250 513,750 540,750 541,250 492,250 491,250 

Peaking turbines and others .... 167,300 155,900 155,900 156,500 155,900 157,800 
1,052,550 1,019,650 1,046,650 1,047,750 998,150 999,050 

Purchase capability .................. 90,000 90,00 100,00 100,00 149,00 201,250 
1,142,550 1,109,650 1,146,650 1,147,750 1,147,150 1,200,300 

Net peak load (Kw) 

60 minutes integrated ................ 1,031,185 978,322 953,926 922,190 966,935 985,456 0.9% 

Number of customers at year-end... 206,935 206,354 206,007 205,959 204,712 204,460 0.2% 

Residential and rural service: 
Average number of customers ....... 176,079 175,693 175,502 175,221 175,039 174,002 
Average annual Kwh sales 
per customer................................. 8,608 8,169 8,143 7,891 8,116 8,533 

Revenue per Kwh sold................... 9.150 9.200 8.180 8.400 8.170 7.300 
Average annual revenue 

per customer ............................... $787.30 $751.46 $665.91 $662.98 $663.37 $622.60 

* Represents Iowa Electric's 70% undivided interest in the Duane Arnold Energy Center which is operated by Iowa Electric.



37

Gas Operating Comparison-11 

Five Year 
Compound 

Rate of 
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1983 Growth 

Operating revenues (000's): 
Residential ..................................... $ 52,871 $45,245 $ 59,153 $ 68,719 $ 73,089 $ 71,202 
Commercial - firm ....................... 22,403 18,475 23,986 27,466 28,995 28,123 

- interruptible.......... 7,211 6,086 8,433 11,032 12,055 12,041 
Industrial - firm ........................... 4,107 3,883 11,961 16,324 17,868 19,815 

- interruptible ............. 14,698 14,455 21,037 30,968 31,456 29,999 
Total from ultimate consumers ... 101,290 88,144 124,570 154,509 163,463 161,180 

Other............................................... 1,049 2,026 588 461 433 1,046 
$102,339 $90,170 $125,158 $154,970 $163,896 $162,226 

Energy sales (000's dekatherms): 
Residential ..................................... 11,680 10,166 12,092 13,147 13,444 13,015 (2.2)% 
Commercial - firm ....................... 5,046 4,301 5,160 5,514 5,575 5,374 (1.3) 

- interruptible.......... 2,236 2,059 2,374 2,713 2,838 2,840 (4.7) 
Industrial - firm............................ 607 626 3,474 4,293 4,842 5,186 (34.9) 

- interruptible ............. 5,490 5,699 6,731 8,261 7,986 7,697 (7.0) 
Total sales..................................... 25,059 22,851 29,831 33,928 34,685 34,112 (6.5) 

Industrial - transported volumes 5,703 4,440 682 - - - 100+ 
Total volumes delivered .............. 30,762 27,291 30,513 33,928 34,685 34,112 (2.1) 

Operating statistics: 
Gas purchased for resale 

(000's dekatherms) ....................... 24,920 23,271 28,954 34,507 34,125 34,894 
"Cost of gas purchased for 

resale (000's) ................................. $ 83,372 $71,995 $ 99,867 $133,394 $136,603 $140,844 
Cost per dekatherm of gas 
- purchased for resale ..................... $ 3.35 $ 3.09 $ 3.45 $ 3.87 $ 4.00 $ 4.04 
Sendout capability at time of 
peak demand (dekatherms) ......... 218,224 251,211 263,986 261,291 261,291 261,221 

Peak daily sendout (dekatherms) .. 217,869 195,682 220,836 264,772 246,384 272,727 (4.4)% 

Number of customers at year-end... 121,919 122,351 126,951 132,986 133,165 132,587 (1.5)% 

Residential service: 
Average number of customers ....... 105,363 107,921 110,480 114,372 114,316 113,603 
Average annual dekatherm sales 
per custom er................................. 111 95 109 115 118 115 

Revenue per dekatherm sold ......... $ 4.53 $ 4.39 $ 4.89 $ 5.23 $ 5.44 $ 5.47 
Average annual revenue 
per customer ................. $ 501.80 $ 417.87 $ 535.42 $ 600.84 $ 639.36 $ 626.77 

Annual Report 
This report is published to provide general information concerning the Company and is not in connection with any sale, 

offer for sale or solicitation of any offer to buy any securities.  
The statements in this report are furnished solely for your information. The facts and figures presented, while accepted by 

the management as reliable in the operations of the property, are not, however, guaranteed by us against inaccuracy or 
omission of material fact and are not furnished by us nor to be used by you in any way which implies liability on our part or 
on the part of our officers and directors in connection with your dealings in the securities of this Company. The purpose of 
this paragraph is to protect you and this Company against any liability that may occur under any State or Federal Securities 
Act.
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Company 
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Des Moines, Iowa 

David Q. Reed (N) 
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and President 
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Chairman of the Board, 
President and Chief 
Executive Officer 
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Vice President
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Vice President, Treasurer and 
Assistant Secretary 

Thomas J. Pitner (47-10) 
Vice President and 
General Counsel 

William C. Jurgensen (48-30) 
Assistant Secretary 
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Chairman of the Board, 
President and Chief 
Executive Officer 
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Senior Vice President-Finance 
and Secretary 
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Senior Vice President
Operations and Production 
Robert J. Kucharski (56-14) 
Vice President and Treasurer 
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Vice President and 
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Shareholder Information

Shareholder 
Information 
Annual Meeting 

The annual meeting of the 
shareholders Will be held at 2:00 
p.m., Central Daylight Time on 
Tuesday, May 23, 1989 at the ie: 
Tower, 6th floor, 200 First Street 
S.E. in Cedar Rapids, Iowa. A 
proxy statement with respect to 
this meeting will be mailed on 
April 11, 1989. All common 
shareholders are cordially 
invited to attend. However, those 
who are unable to attend in 
person are urged to promptly 
sign and return their proxy.  

Stock Exchange Listing 
IE Industries Inc. common 

stock is listed on the New York 
Stock Exchange under the 
symbol IEL. Newspaper listings 
often use the. symbol IE IND.  

General Inquiries 
Shareholder inquiries, includ

4ng the replacement of dividend 
checks, address changes, transfer 
or reissuance of stock certifi
-cates, and requests from the 
general public for any financial 
publications may be directed to: 

IE Industries Inc.  
Attn: Shareholder Services 
P.O. Box 351 
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 52406 
1-800-247-9785 or 319-398
7755 

Where to Buy and Sell Stock 
Common stock may be pur

chased and sold privately or on 
the open market through a bro
kerage firm. A shareholder 
enrolled in the Company's Divi
dend Reinvestment and Stock 
Purchase Plan can purchase 
additional common stock with 
no brokerage fees through the op
tional cash feature of the Plan.  

Shares held in the Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Pur
chase Plan can be sold through 
the Plan Administrator upon 
written request of the share
holder, who will receive all 
proceeds of the sale less any 
brokerage commission.

Dividend Reinvestment and 
Stock Purchase Plan 

The Company has a Dividend 
Reinvestment and Stock Pur
chase Plan which allows share
holders to automatically rein
vest their cash dividends in ad
ditional shares of commonstock.  
The First National Bank of 
Chicago acts as the Plan Admin
istrator. A prospectus describing 
the Plan can be obtained by 
writing to Shareholder Services.  

Duplicate Accounts 
and Mailings 

Shareholders sometimes 
receive more than one Annual 
Report because shares owned by 
one shareholder may be regis
tered with slight variations in 
names. The Company is re
quired to mail an Annual Report 
to each name on the shareholder 
list unless the shareholder re
quests that duplicates be elimi
nated. To eliminate duplicate 
mailings, please send a written 
request to Shareholder Services.  

Dividend Payment Dates 
Scheduled Dividend Payment 

and Record Dates for 1989 are:

Record Dates 
March 10, 1989 
June 16, 1989 
Sept. 15, 1989 
Dec. 15, 1989

Payment Dates 
April 1, 1989 
July 1, 1989 
Oct. 1, 1989 
Jan. 1, 1990

Transfer Agents 
The First National Bank 

of Chicago 
Chicago, Illinois 

The Merchants National Bank 
of Cedar Rapids 
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 

IE Industries 
Common Stock 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company 

Preferred and 
Preference Stock 

Registrars 
The First National Bank of 

Chicago 
Chicago, Illinois 

Norwest Bank Cedar Rapids, 
N.A.  
Cedar Rapids, Iowa 

IE Industries 
Common Stock 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company 

Preferred and 
Preference Stock 

Trustee 
The First National Bank of 

Chicago 
Chicago, Illinois 

IE-Industries 
Indenture 

Iowa Electric 
Light and Power Company

Dividends paid on common 
stock in 1988 were fully taxable 
for federal income tax purposes.  

1988 Form 10-K Available 
on Request 

The Company files annually 
with the Securities and Ex
change Commission an Annual 
Report Form 10-K. This required 
report contains certain other in
formation not made a part of 
this report. The Company will 
be happy to send you a copy of 
our 1988 Form 10-K without 
charge. Requests should be 
made to Shareholder Services.
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-NOTICE
THE ATTACHED FILES ARE OFFICIAL RE
CORDS OF THE RECORDS & REPORTS 
MANAGEMENT BRANCH. THEY HAVE BEEN 
CHARGED TO YOU FOR A LIMITED TIME 
PERIOD AND MUST BE RETURNED TO THE 
RECORDS & ARCHIVES SERVICES SECTION 
P1-122 WHITE FLINT. PLEASE DO NOT 
SEND DOCUMENTS CHARGED OUT 
THROUGH THE MAIL. REMOVAL OF ANY 
PAGE(S) FROM DOCUMENT FOR REPRO
DUCTION MUST BE REFERRED TO FILE 
PERSONNEL.  
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